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Jose Torrellas, who entered a conditional guilty plea to one
count of possession with intent to distribute cocaine in
violation of 21 U.S.C. 8§ 841(a)(1l), appeals the district court’s
denial of his notion to suppress. W review factual findings
made by a district court on a notion to suppress for clear error,
and we review the district court’s ultimate concl usions on Fourth

Amendnment i ssues de novo. United States v. Santiaqgo, 310 F. 3d

336, 340 (5th CGr. 2002). Finding no error, we affirm

" Pursuant to 5THOR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opi nion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.
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Torrell as was stopped for speeding by Oficer Chris Read of
the Meridian Police Departnent’s Interstate Crine Enforcenent
unit. There is no question that the stop was justified or that
O ficer Read could, consistent with the Fourth Amendnent,
question Torrellas regarding his itinerary and then performa

conputer records check. See United States v. Brigham 382 F.3d

500, 507-08 (5th Cr. 2004) (en banc).
In addition, the district court correctly applied our six-
factor test to determ ne whether Torrellas voluntarily consented

to the search. See United States v. Shabazz, 993 F.2d 431, 438

(5th Gr. 1993). Al though much of the exchange between O ficer
Paxson and Torrellas regarding consent is nuffled, both officers
testified that Torrellas volunteered to allow themto search his
car when O ficer Paxson asked whether he had contraband in the
car. They also testified that Torrellas tw ce confirnmed his
consent when O ficer Paxson asked whether Torrellas “had a
problent with the officers searching the car. There was no

evi dence of any coercive procedures enployed to obtain the
consent; to the contary, Torrellas volunteered to allow a search
in response to a question about contraband. In a simlar vein,
Torrell as was cooperative, further indicating that his consent
was voluntary. Although there is no direct evidence that
Torrellas knew that he could w thhold consent, there is |Iikew se
not hi ng to suggest that Torrellas believed that he was required

to consent. The district court appropriately concluded that
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Torrellas was not unintelligent, which is evident fromthe
vi deot ape and supported by the district court’s prior interaction
wth Torrellas. Finally, the district court perm ssibly drew the
inference that Torrellas believed that the drugs woul d not be
found. G ven the record, we cannot say that the district court
erred in concluding that Torrellas’s consent was voluntary.
G ven that Torrellas consented to the search while the records
check was being run, the fact that the officers did not inform
hi mthat the check was “cl ean” before searching in no way
vitiated his consent; there is nothing to suggest that his
consent was in any way predicated on the records check, and the
officers were justified by his consent to search the car.

We reject Torrellas’ s assertion that his consent did not
include the trunk or the speaker box located in the trunk.
Torrellas’s general consent to search the car for drugs justified

sear chi ng wherever drugs m ght be concealed. See Florida v.

Ji neno, 500 U. S. 248, 251 (1991); United States v. Ross, 456 U. S

798, 820-24 (1982). In addition, Torrellas specifically told
O ficer Read that he could open the box.

Torrellas al so contends that the evidence should be
suppressed because he was stopped solely based on the fact that
he is Hspanic. Wth respect to Torrellas’s Fourth Amendnent
claim it is beyond cavil that the officers’ subjective

notivations for the stop are irrelevant to the Fourth Anendnent
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analysis. See United States v. Lopez-Mreno, 420 F.3d 420, 432

(5th Gir. 2005).

Torrellas’s claimthat the alleged racial profiling violated
the Equal Protection Cause of the Fifth and Fourteenth
Amendnents al so fails. Although whet her suppression is an
appropriate renedy for an Equal Protection Cl ause violation is an

open question, see United States v. lLopez-Mreno, 420 F. 3d 420,

434 (5th Gir. 2005), cert. denied, 126 S. Ct. 1449 (2006), we

need not answer that question here, because Torrellas has failed
to provide evidence of any discrimnatory notives by the
officers. Rather, he offers nothing nore than specul ation and
i nnuendo, nuch of which is colored by his m staken assertion that
the officers worked for Immgration and Custons Enforcenent and
were searching for illegal aliens rather than enforcing traffic
| aws.

For the foregoing reasons, the judgnent of the district

court 1s AFFI RVED



